
BEFORE THE UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

IN THE MATTER OF:

Gilberto Roman Gonzalez
Finca Roman
Can. 526, I(m 1.2
Adjuntas, Puerlo Rico,

Respondent

Docket No. FIFRA-O2-2008-5303

FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. $ 22.18(c) of EPA's Consolidated Rules ofPractice, the Consent
Agreement resolving this matter is hereby approved and incorporated by reference into this
Consent Order. The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the
Consent Agreement, effective immediately upon receipt by Respondent of this Consent
Agreement and Consent Order.

so ORDERED, tr'is / 
S/ ou v.r O-,i, .zoos.
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CONSENT AGREEMENT

I' PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Complainant, the United States Environmental Protection Agency. ("EPA") and 
'.- .L^

Respondent, Gilberto Roman Gonzalez, having agleed to- settle this matter' consent to the

termsofthisConsentAgreement(.Agreement''),andbeforethetakingofanytestrmony
and without the adjudicatron ofissues-oflaw or fact herein' agree to comply with the

termsofthisAgeementandattachedproposedFinalorderherebyincorpolatedby
reference.

II. JURISDICTION

Respondent, Gilberto Roman Gonzalez, owns and operates a commercial coffee

production facility known as Finca Roman' located at Car.' 526' Km' 1'2' Adjuntas'

Puerto Rico, and is therefore al'p""on" within the meaning of section 2(s) of FIFRA' 7

u.s.C. $ 136(s).

The Agency initiated this proceeding for the assessment ofa civil penalty pursuant to

Section 14(a)(2) ofthe Federailns"Jti"id", Fungicide' and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA)' 7

U.i.C. S riOii"ltZl, by issuing an administrativl ̂C-omplaint 
and Notice of Opportu ty

for Heaiing ("Complaint')' dated October 26' 2007 '

The Conrplaint, incorporated herein by referencg alle-ged that Respondent failed to

comply with the Worker Protection Siandard ('WPS')' codified at 40 C'F R' Part 170' tn

violation of Section l2(a)(z)ic) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C g 136j(aX2XG)' and proposed a

penalty of $7,500.

Respondent filed a Motion Requesting Extention [sic] of'Time to Answer the Complaint'

i;;;;;;;"Jh".ein bv.efere""e, dati December 3'2007 ' requesting a hearing pursuant

to FIFRA Section t4(aX3), ft.ii g 1361(a)(3), and 40.C'F R $ 22'1s(c)' and filed an

,Cn.*.i *.otporated herein by reference' dated January 15' 2008'

3.
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To avoid the disruption of orderly business activities *9,:*O"n'" ofprotracted and costly

[;;il;, 
"";p"ni.nt,-fot 

putposes of this proceeding: (1) admits that EPA has

iurisdiction over trre suolect mlit-e-r 
"ff"g"a 

it the ComPlaint; and (2) waives his right to

request a judicial or administrii;;;;;t; "t 
any issue of law or fact set forth in this

Asreement and his right to upf"ufm" ptoiosed Final Order accompanying this

Agreemenr.

Respondent neither admits nor denies the findings offact and conclusions oflaw set forth

in Section III of this Agreement'

ln recognition ofthe cooperation shown to the govemment bv Respondent and his

willingness to settle thls In",,., *iiir""ii"rtherirtigation, EPA agrees to mitigate the civil

;;;';6;;r..ent, set forth in the Complaint' as described in Section V below'

Paragraphs 1 through 46 of the Complaint are incorporated herein by reference as EPA's

Findings of Fact in this matter '

EPA asserts that EPA's Findrngs of Fact in this matter constitute violations of FIFRA

Section l2(a)(2)(G),7U'S C' SbliiilJialcj' r"twhichacivilpenaltvmavbeassessed

r*r""*," fmite Section 1a(a)(1), 7 U'S'C' $ 1361(a)'

Respondent has agreed to provide Complainant' wrthin sixty (60) days ofissuance ofa

Final Order, a report provlomftft" aouil"a steps he. has taken to come into full

compliance with FIFRA $ lrt?)i;)iCftJ !h"-w"'k1^T?:ection 
Standard ("wPs") at

40 C.F.R. Part 170. This report shall explain Respondent's practices a1d'nrye$'ye's fot

ensuring compliance with 
"fr "tp""tt 

tiift" WPS iegulations as set forlh in the Worker

Protection Standard Co-pftu""i n"port template atiached hereto as Appendix A'

Respondent has agreed to provide Complainant' within sixtv 160) davs ofissuance of a

Final order, an affirmation by Respondenr that he has p.rrondtj r"ui and understands .

the tollowing documents, d;;;; a;dlainant: 1a) WPS regulations at 40 CFR Part

170; (b) "How to Comply wrth tft" Wo't"t i"otection Standard for Agricultural

Pesticides; and (c) "Patrono r 
'i'utui 

udot Agricola! Como Puede Protegerse de los

Plaguicidas?" A template fO' il"tpJ"a""t's Affirmation is attached hereto as Appendix

B.

Respondent has agreed to provide complainant, within sixty (60) davs frol the da,te of

ilil]-6!ffiJ-o.d"r, io"uro"ntation pf the most recent pesticide applicationrlone at

Respondent's farm and p'""idt;;'i'd"";" of flo* the application complied with FIFRA

and the WPS, which shall tn"iod" do""t"ntation oi (a) whal pesticide application
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information was displayed for workers and for handlers; (b) where on the farm it was

ilrpi"vlat iO whenihe pesticide application information was displayed; (d) all

decontaminationsuppliestlatwereprovidedtoworkersandhandlersduringthepesticide

"ppi*",i"" 
and where they were supplie<l (including information on decontamination

riipi"t pt tla"d at the mixing site and the decontamrna::n site); and (e) the personal--

protective equipment that wasirovicied to tle-handlers This requested information will

i"rnonrt.ut.'thut Respondent has, in good faith, taken measures to fully comply with

requirements of FIFRA and the WPS'

Respondent shall submit the information requested in paragraphs l1-13 to the following

persons:

Danielle C' Fidler
U.S. Environmenlal Prolection Agency
Office of Special Litigation and Projects
1200 PennsYlvania Avenue, NW
MC-224lA,Ariel Rios South Room 4150F

Washington, DC 20460

and

Adrian Enache
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

USEPA Facilities - Mail Code 500MS500
Raritan DePot
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ 08837-3679

Should the information provided by Respondent under Paragraph 13 indicate u l"* ^
violation of FIFRA or the wpS, Responient shall be liable for a stipulated penalty of

$800 Per violation.

Respondent shall pay any stipulated penalties to-Complainant within sixty (60) days of

,"""ipt of *ritt"n iernand to Re.pondent from Complainant- A demand for the payment

oi.tiprrtut"A p"nalties will identify the particular violation(s) to which the.stipulated.

perralty relates, the stipulated penalty amount that Complainant is demanding for each

violation, and the grounds upon which the demand is base<l. Pa],rnent of any stipulated

penalties shall follow the procedures set forth in Paragraphs 22 and23'

V. CNILPENALTY

Sect:ion 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $ 136(a), authorizes a civil penalty of up to $1'000'00

1orl" tttou"una dollars) for each violation of FIFRA Pursuant to the Federal Civil

Penalties lnflation Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C' $ 2461, as amended by the Debt

col lect ionImprovementActoflgg6,3lUS.C.$3T0l,andregulat ionspromulgated

-ttZ"V
rl
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19 .

Dursuant thereto at 40 C.F'R. Parts l9 and2'. , see 69 Fed' Reg' 7121 (February l3' 2004)'

;;J;;;;"t increased to $i,100 5'ee Memorandum from Stephanie P' Brown'

e"iirg Ott*i"t of Toxics and Pesticides Enforcement Division' "Penalty Policy

S"ppl?*"t,t ptrsuant to the 2004 Civil Monetary Penalty lnflation Adjustment Rule"'

dated June 5,2006. Pursuant to the July 2, 1990 Enforcement ResPonse Polir! fo'. t!1^..,

i"inrol tnri"ti"irle, Fungicirle, and Ridenticide 'th Ennll ftereinafter 
*FIFRA ERP")

and the October 21,lggT Interim Final Penalty Policy for the FIFM Worker Protection

itandard (llPS) (hereinafter"WPS Penalty Policy''), the Agency proposed in its

Complaint in this case a $7,500 gravity-based civil penalty'

TheFIFRAERPpermitsareductionincivilpenaltiesforsettlementsforcooperationby
ttr" *.p"tA* und gooa faith efforts to comply with FIFRA' where such a reduction - .
would serve the public lnterest. Complainant hnds that Respondent's efforts-to-sQttle this

matter without further litigation merii a penalty reduction of fifteen percent ( l57o)' or

$1 ,12s .

The FIFRA ERP permits a further reduction ofpenalty where a respondent agrees to

perform certain environmentally benefrcial acts in exchan_ge for a reduction in penalty'

i"[rr""J a ty ,fre FIFRA ERP as a "settlement with Conditions'" Respondent has agreec

i"l"-pfy -ltft,he terms of settlement above, which require Respondent to take steps to

assure compliance not only with those provisions of FIFRA alleged in the Complaint' but

to ensure across-the-board compliance with FIFRA and the WPS in the future As part of

these conditions, Respondent agrees to provide Complainant with an audit ofa future

p".ii"ia. 
"ppfi."tion 

and to pay"stipulated penalties should there be any FIFRA violations

associatediherewith. These steps will not only benefrt the environment by assunng

pesticides are properly used, but will reduce risks to human health by assurlng

ia".p"ra""i fti, documented procedures for assuring compliance with the WPS' In

"*"frurrg" 
for agreeing to these conditions' Complainant has agreed to reduce the

propos"d penaiy an additional ten percent (10%), or $750'

Consistent with the relevant penalty policies and based on the facts presented above' the

grau;ty of tf,e uiolations alleged heiein, the size of Respondent's business' Respondent's

iiifitv t" continue in busines"s in light ofthe proposed penalty' Respondent's willingness

io uuia" uy ,t 
" 

conditions of settleilent set forth herein, and such other matters as justice

;;;;d", Complainant ptoposes that Respondent be assessed a total penalty of $5'625

for the violations alleged in this Complaint'

VI. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

Respondent consents to the execution of this Agreement, and aglees to pay FIVE^

THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($5,625 00) in satisfaction

of the penaltY.

For payment of the civil penalties, Respondent shall make three (3) paymen]1 of -ON! .
THOUSANDEIGHTHUNDREosgvpNTy-TIVEDOLLARS($I,s75.00)eachwithin

2xev
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four(4)months,eight(8)months,andtwelve(12)monthsoftheissuanceofaFinal
Ordei. Each of the three payrnents shall be made by sending a cashier's check or a

certifred check in the amount of ONE THOUSAND EIGHT HLTNDRED SEVENTY-

FwE DOLLARS ($1,875'00) made payable to the ..Treasurer of the United States of

America," to the following address:

United States Environment Protection Agency
Hearing Clerk
Docket No. FIFRA-02-2008-5304
P.O' Box 3602'77M
Pittsburgh, PA 15251

Altematively, Respondents shall make each of these payrnents of ONE THOUSAND

EIGHT HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($1,875.00) via wire transfer by using

the lollowins instructions:

Y$p

Name of Beneficiary:
Number of Account for dePosit:
The Bank Holding Acct:
The ABA routing Number:

EPA
68010099
Treas_NYC
021030004

z ) .

Each ofthe three checks or wire tfansfers should indicate that it is for In the Matter of

Gilberto Roman Gonzalez. Docket No. FiFRA-02-2008-5303'

Respondent shall forward copies ofeach ofthese checks or wire transfers to EPA, within

five (5) days ofpayrnent, to the attention of:

Danielle C. Fidler
U'S. Environmental Protection Agency

Special Litigation and Projects Division

1200 PennsYlvania Ave, NW
Ariel Rios Building, Room 4150F

Washington, DC 20460

and

Clerk, Environmental Appeals Board

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

MC 1103B
1200 PennsYlvania Avenue, NW

Washington, DC 20460

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. $ 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts

owed to the United States and a charge to cover thr: cost ofprocessing and handling a 
-

tlelinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date



25.
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27.

of entry of the Finar ortrer'if.the qenaltls *1l11YTle^nt:J,"J,l'::1",T:f""JtJf i;

"r*rrJo 
^in. rate of the United States Treasuty tax and loi

C.F.R. $13.11. A charge w'tt iJ ut*"""a to cover the-costs of debt collection' including

processing and handling cott' 
""il'i"tt"v 

ft*' In addition' a oenalty charge of twelve

oercent (l2ohi)p"' ,"u' "o*OoJ"aJ 
*'luuffy *iU be-assessed on any potlion of the debt

ihat r"mains delinquent morelrt* *t"tv tsdl days after payment is due

Respondent's obiigations under this Agreement shall end when it has paid the civil

penalty, as requit"o uy s""ttoi vi;f dit G*rntnt and the Final order' and has

i"*or1"J *r,ri its obligations under Section IV of this Agreement

lf theRespondentfai lstomeetal loI i tsobl igationsr.rnderthisAgreementwithinoneyear

",., i..'.-.'."ii "" o r il,. ri n ur 3.l",l jf ,?, ilt:'ffi,.W ;tj fru* f;1#: ll;' l "
sravitv-based PenaltY of sevt

iul' oenalty shall be due wrtii;';;;ii0tuuv, of the receipt of the demand letter'

For the purposes of state and federal income tax:tio1l:-seondent shall not be entitled'

and agries not to attempt' to "'ru* 
u a'ao"tion for anv civil 

il:*?J"ro:Tfirli"*'
l,".rT*" * tinal oider' Any attempt by Respondent I

ihalt constitute a violation of the Agreement'

Arorthete,mslli::li{ffi :i,,H,"tfl ilffi :f F"X'"1ii';iil::ffTff.Tf;*t*
each of the terms and conortlons 

i:::::#;; or more of its terms and conditions)
;ilil ln the event that this Agleement (*."^',::Tf::::i': 

iffi#ii;, o,l' not
is held invalid, o' 

" 
not 

"*""*"d 
b"y all of the signatory Parties in identical form' or rs t

approved in such identical 
'f# 

Utitt" g.Ag o' iit d"'ig"ut"d representative then the

llio. ort".*tnt shall be null and void'

rhe parties a$ee that the.Respondent ples:.rves 1i:i*l:l:::['#Jl'J,tfli.'#i't 
t"

voided in whole or in part' The parties fulher agree tnal

:tr;."fffi:,Tl,Iru?:H*ft i*:ff ff lirffix'ftHl"1"^iT:tri:?*ir$iT"'
Vll. Reservation of Rights and Settlement

ll,',1'tril"iiHh:1l{tf ilrtr[#,i'J":l:{."1*",*;H:"tT'i'iHT:
;:ll;"flil!'."':"'tr!lt:_:,al*ifr?:ffi:Tt,T?'li*mlnru';"+""t.
ffiiifl;:H}}*fr"'llidl;i***,*;"gp[11,g919'i;5",**,
l**lltt;*1il?b'[;1ffiff'lJ"lT*1"#iJ""'.;'i,ff +*:;y:ffi *,.la,ion.r
;;;;;;;;tion, either civil or criminal' asainst Respor

28.
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) L ,

any federal or state statute, regulatton or petmtt

VIII. Other Matters

Each party shall bear its own costs and attomey fees in this matter'

The provisions of thts Agreement antl the Final Order' when issued by the EAB' shall

apply to and be binaing on tn;-';;;t^t**' and the Respondent' When executed by the

B'Ag, tile Final Order shalf ft-t ii"""*" f*ce and effect as defined in 40 C'F'R'$ 22'3'

The Respondent .nuff '""n tt"tion"'iil fot tft" completion of all work required under

ifri, enr".-""t and the satisfaction of all of its tetms'

Nothing in this Agreement shall relieve Respondent of the duty to comply with all

applicable provisions of FrRl'ot oitt"rlupptt"utte federal' state or local envilonmental

l;ws or statutes, nor shall it '*t""t gpe't authority to seek compliance with any

""tif 
."fr]" environmental laws' nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on' or a

iii"""r""*" 
"r, 

any issue related to any federal' state or local permit'

The undersigned representatives of each party to this. Agreement cediry that each is duly

authorized by the parly who;;;;t;';t; enter into these terms and bind that party

to it.

PPe'-

J J .

34.

Director, SPecial Litigation and

Proiects Division
U.d. Environmental Protection Agency



IntheMafterofGi lbef ioRomanGonzct lez,DocketNo'FIFRA-02-2008-5303

FOR Respondent:

Gilberto Roman Gonzalez

s'/l o/,t
Date



CERTIT'ICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that copies ofthe foregoing Final Order and Consent Agreement, in the
matter of Gilberto Roman Gonzalez, Docket No. FIFRA-02-2008-5303, were sent to the
following persons in the manner indicated:

Certified Mail
Retum Receipt Requested: Alberto L. Ramos Law Offices

P.O. Box 750
Mercedita, Puedo Rico 00715-0750

Bernadette Rappold, Director
Special Litigation and Projects Division (22484)
Office of Civil Enforcement
Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance
United States Environmental Proteclion Agency
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC20460

Inter-Office Mail:

Dared: JUL 2 lnt
Annette Duncan

Secretary


